Earth Negotiations Bulletin
A RepE)r'Ei n.g -Se;vi.ce. fo-r I.En-vi ;oan;er;t and Ise:/el.of)rr;er;t Iile;\:]o.tia.\ti(.)ns
Onlineat http://www.iisd.ca/climate/sp13/

Vol. 12 No. 142

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)

Tuesday, 5 September 2000

HIGHLIGHTSFROM FCCC SB-13
INFORMAL MEETINGS
MONDAY, 4 SEPTEMBER 2000

Theweek of informal meetings preceding theformal thirteenth
sessions of the subsidiary bodies (SB-13) of the UN Framework
Convention on Climate Change (FCCC) began on Monday, 4
September, with aninitial briefing by the Chairs of the subsidiary
bodies and the Executive Secretary of the FCCC Secretariat.
Following this, informal meetingswere convened to consider:
guidelinesunder Protocol Articles’5 (methodological issues), 7
(communication of information) and 8 (review of information); the
Kyoto Protocol mechanisms; and land use, |and-use change and
forestry (LULUCF).

Theseinformal meetings, which are being held from 4-9
September in Lyon, France, immediately precede SB-13, which
will take place from 11-15 September. Delegatesto SB-13 and the
informal meetingswill work toward fulfilling the Buenos Aires
Plan of Action (BAPA) adopted at the Fourth Conference of the
Partiesin November 1998. Under the BAPA, Parties set atwo-year
deadline for strengthening FCCC implementation and preparing
for the future entry into force of the Kyoto Protocol. The Sixth
Conference of the Parties (COP-6), scheduled to take place from
13-24 November 2000, in The Hague, the Netherlands, will mark
the culmination of thistwo-year process.

SB-13 will aim to make progress on negotiations covering a
range of topics necessary for acomprehensive agreement to be
reached at COP-6, including: the Protocol mechanisms; implemen-
tation of FCCC Article 4.8 and 4.9 and mattersrelating to Article
3.14 of the Kyoto Protocol (adverse effects); compliance under the
Protocol; best practicesin policies and measures (P& Ms) among
Partiesincluded in Annex | to the FCCC; LULUCEF; guidelines
under Protocol Articles5, 7 and 8; and the devel opment and
transfer of technologies.

INITIAL BRIEFING

Harald Dovland (Norway), Chair of the Subsidiary Body for
Scientific and Technological Advice, welcomed participants.
Noting that only 10 weeksremain before COP-6, he said this
week’s meetings would aim to advance progress on text on all
issues. He observed that informal consultations and meetings had
been held since SB-12 on several key issues, including: adverse
effects, technology transfer, the mechanisms, compliance, and
LULUCF. In addition, submissionsfrom Parties had been received
relating to LULUCF, capacity building, and guidelines under
Protocol Articles5, 7 and 8. He noted that these consultations and
submissions had assisted in the devel opment of negotiating text.

FCCC Executive Secretary Michael Zammit Cutajar thanked
the French government and city of Lyon for hosting SB-13. He
expressed regret at the passing away of two prominent figuresin

climate change negotiations: Jean Ripert of France, who chaired
the Intergovernmental Negotiating Committee that resulted inthe
adoption of the FCCC in 1992; and Shukong Zhong, Special
Advisor on Environmental I1ssuesin China’'sMinistry of Foreign
Affairs. NIGERIA, on behalf of the G-77/CHINA, conveyed the
Group's condolences. On logistical matters, he expressed concern
at thelate availability and distribution of documents, which
affected devel oping country preparation and participation. He said
all official documentsfor COP-6 should be availablewell in
advance of the meeting. He noted that the lack of interpretation
would disadvantage representatives of non-English speaking
countries and stressed the need to achieve a balanced package of
agreementsthat reflectsthe priorities of al Parties.

INFORMAL MEETINGS

MECHANISMS: Chair Kok Kee Chow (Malaysia) intro-
duced the consolidated text on principles, modalities, rulesand
guidelines on Mechanisms. INDIA, speaking for the G-77/
CHINA, calledfor progress on other elements of the BAPA, high-
lighted the need for conformity with the FCCC's emphasison
equity and common but differentiated responsibilities, and empha-
sized issuesrelating to the nature and scope of the mechanismsand
supplementarity.

The Secretariat gave a presentation on the proposed CDM
Reference Manual and on accreditation. He suggested that the
Manual would contain chapters on baseline methodol ogies, moni-
toring, the project design document, accreditation body require-
ments and Operational Entity requirements. He said the
Operational Entities could use the Manual to understand, inter
alia, the accreditation criteriaand process; validation, verification
and certification process; and approved methodol ogiesto validate/
register project activities. On accreditation, he outlined optionsfor
institutional arrangements, including asingle worldwide accredita-
tion body, a federation/association of accreditation bodies, and
mutual/multilateral recognition agreements. Heidentified issues
for consideration, such asthe use of existing accreditation struc-
tures, financing of accreditation bodies and process, and appeal
processes for designated Operational Entities.

BRAZIL, with COLOMBIA, SOUTH AFRICA, CHINA and
MOROCCO, said decisions on baselines should betaken by a
politically-appointed body, such asthe Executive Board. SAUDI
ARABIA highlighted the political nature of CDM-related deci-
sions, urged that decisions on baselines be undertaken by the COP/
MOP, and expressed reservations about the need for a Reference
Manual. COLOMBIA noted the possi ble tendency to exaggerate
baselines, and urged provision for the de-certification of Opera-
tional Entities. CHINA, withthe US, expressed preferencefor a
single worldwide accreditation body.

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by Angela Churie <angela@iisd.org>, Jon Hanks <jon.hanks@iiiee.lu.se>, Lavanya
Rajamani <lavanya@iisd.org>, Malena Sell <malena@iisd.org>, Chris Spence <chris@iisd.org> and Lisa Schipper <lisa@iisd.org>. The Digital Editor isAndrel Henry

<andrei@iisd.org>. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Director of 1I1SD Reporting Services is Langston James "Kimo" Goree VI
<kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada (through CIDA and DFAIT), the
United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and Landscape (SAEFL), the United Kingdom Department for International Development
(DFID), the European Commission (DG-ENV) and the Rockefeller Foundation. General Support for the Bulletin during 2000 is provided by the German Federal Ministry
of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Ministry of Environment and
theMinistry of Foreign Affairsof Austria, the Ministriesof Foreign Affairsand Environment of Norway, the Ministriesof Foreign Affairsand Environment of Finland, the
Government of Australia, and BP Amoco. Thisissuewas prepared in cooperation withthe UNFCCC Secretariat. TheBulletin can be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org>
and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. I1SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba
R3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders.
Excerpts from the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this
material incommercia publications, contact the Director of 11SD Reporting Services. Electronic versionsof the Bulletin are sent to e-mail distribution listsand can befound
ontheLinkagesWWW server at http://www.iisd.ca. The satelliteimage wastaken above Lyon ©2000 The Living Earth, Inc. http://livingearth.com. For information on the
Earth Negotiations Bulletin, send e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




Tuesday, 5 September 2000

Vol. 12 No. 142 Page 2

The REPUBLIC OF KOREA highlighted the issue of addition-
ality and questioned whether the Manual would be acompilation of
COP/MOP and Executive Board decisions, or would include tech-
nical advice. The US supported the Manual serving asarepository
of decisions, while FRANCE, for the EU, urged that it be of atech-
nical nature. The US agreed that decisions on baselines and related
i ssues should be made with the approval of the Board or an
appointed expert group serving under it.

SAUDI ARABIA and NORWAY cautioned against delaying
necessary decisionson the CDM. The EU suggested that the role of
the Board liesin the accreditati on and random checking of Opera-
tional Entities.

MOROCCO highlighted the interaction between the three
mechanisms. INDIA sought clarity on the nature of the Certificate
on Emissions Reductions. The PHILIPPINES expressed concern
with agreeing on the form of the Reference Manual before agreeing
on the substance of its content. She sought clarity on the certifica:
tion of project activitiesand emissionsreduction. MAURITANIA
sought clarity on theroles of the host country and the Operational
Entity, and stressed the need for the host country to play the
“drivingrole” in the process.

In afurther session on the mechanisms, theINTERNATIONAL
STANDARDSORGANISATION, INTERNATIONAL
ACCREDITATION FORUM and DET NORSKE VERITAS
outlined their views on accreditation and conformity assessment.
NGO representatives highlighted the need to include public partici-
pationinthe CDM and JI, and to promote a“ positivelist” of non-
contentious, credible renewabl e energy and demand-side technolo-
giesfor the CDM. Business representatives stressed, inter alia, the
need for non-bureaucratic mechanisms, and for translating envi-
ronmental objectivesinto business criteria

GUIDELINESUNDER PROTOCOL ARTICLESS5,7& 8:
Co-Chairs Helen Plume (New Zealand) and Festus L uboyera
(South Africa) outlined the group’swork, which includes elabora-
tion of guidelinesunder Articles 7 and 8, guidance under Article
5.2 (adjustments) and four related draft decisions. They stressed the
need to focus on what can be achieved prior to COP-6, noting that
someissueswill befurther elaborated at alater stage asthey
depend on the work of other groups, such ason LULUCEF, adverse
effects and the mechanisms. The US suggested starting with guide-
linesunder Article 7, asthiswould al so progress those under
Article 8. The EU and US agreed to devel op acommon text on
Article 5.2 asabasisfor further negotiation.

Parti cipants then began consideration of the draft guidelines
under Article 8. The EU said the expert review team (ERT) should
userelevant information to “ substantiate” rather than “ verify”
information provided by Annex | Parties. A nhumber of participants
preferred replacing theterm “shall” with “may” when referring to
thetasks of the ERT.

On the paragraphs addressing provision of additional informa-
tionto the ERT and confidentiaity, the US, proposed moving the
two paragraphsto the section on review of inventories, where they
weremorerelevant. The EU said the paragraphswererelated to
other guidelinesand preferred their inclusion in ageneral section.
SAUDI ARABIA, speaking for the G-77/CHINA, said the para-
graphswere applicableto all elements of reporting and should be
retained.

The EU proposed el aborating confidential information to
include“ confidential business or military information” asreferred
toinsimilar paragraphs of the Montreal Protocol. AUSTRALIA,
withNEW ZEALAND, said that the Montreal Protocol language
may not be appropriate and preferred referring to national security.
NIGERIA asked whether any confidential information would be
given, asit was not clear from the guidelines. The US said this
issue should be dealt with in the context of inventories and called
for procedures on how the ERT will deal with confidential data.

Regarding timeframes, the US said they should not be aspira-
tional deadlinesbut should be fixed and firm. The EU proposed
referring to review cycles, noting that there are specific reviews
that all requiretimeframes. SWITZERLAND suggested defining a
period of timein which the compliance of a Party should be
assessed.

LAND USE, LAND-USE CHANGE AND FORESTRY: Co-
Chair Halldor Thorgeirsson (Iceland) summarized outcomesfrom
theworkshop held in Poznan, Poland, in July, prior to the deadline
for Party submissionson LULUCF on 1 August. He outlined the
work programmefor the informal consultationsand said he
expected theseto |ead toward a negotiating text. He asked dele-
gatesto: provide clarifications on their submissions; highlight their
priorities; and indicate opportunities for streamlining ideas.
BRAZIL, for the G-77/CHINA, stressed that he would not be
prepared to discuss L UL UCF issues before Wednesday. He said the
consultations were moving beyond the mandated methodological
issues, and that adraft resolution could not be made on the basis of
the submissions. TUVALU underscored the need to consider the
datacontained in the 1 August submissions, rather than focusing
solely on the synthesis of the textual proposals.

AUSTRALIA, withthe US, supported working toward adraft
decision. Co-Chair Thorgeirsson introduced the consolidated
synthesis of proposals made by Parties on methodological issues
related to LULUCF that contains material on: proposed definitions
and accounting approachesrelated to aff orestation, reforestation
and deforestation under Article 3.3; how and which additional
human-induced activities might beincluded under Article 3.4
including modalities, rulesand guidelinesrel ated to these activities
and their accounting; methodol ogies for measuring and reporting
inrelationto Article 3.3 and 3.4 activities; overall accounting
approachesin relation to the requirements of Article 3.3, 3.4 and
3.7; reversibility, natural effects and accounting interlinkages; and
other issues. He explained that the proposals had not been merged,
simply organized under descriptive headings.

IN THE CORRIDORS

On an unremarkabl e opening day, anumber of observers
suggested that del egates had made acomfortableif slow-paced
start, resuming from where they had left-off at SB-12 and subse-
quent consultations. Several delegates expressed concern at this
apparent lack of urgency, given that COP-6isnow close. The
strong position taken by the G-77/Chinaover logistical consider-
ationsthat might impact devel oping country participation caused
someto question how much will be achieved prior to COP-6.

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY
POLICIESAND MEASURES: Theweek’sfirstinformal
meeting on policiesand measureswill betake placeat 10:00 amin

the Amphitheztre.

TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER: Aninformal session on tech-
nology transfer will be held at 10:00 amin Rhone 2.

CAPACITY BUILDING: Thismeeting will begin at 3:00 pm
in Salon Pasteur.

LULUCF: Thismeeting will begin at 3:00 pm in the Amphi-
theatre and will consider the consolidated synthesis of proposals
made by Parties on methodol ogical issues.

COMPLIANCE: Scheduled for 5:00 pm in the Amphitheatre.

ADVERSE EFFECTS: This meeting will take place at 5:00
pmin Salon Pasteur.

ARTICLESS5, 7 & 8: Thiscontact group will meet from 7:00
pm in Salon Pasteur to discuss guidelinesunder Article 7.

MECHANISMS: Thismeeting will take placeat 7:00 pmin
Auditorium Lumiere.



